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1. Introduction

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s (FMCSA) core mission is to prevent crashes, injuries,
and fatalities related to large trucks and buses on our Nation’s roads. An important step in achieving the
mission is to identify unsafe motor carriers and prioritize FMCSA enforcement resources on those that
pose the greatest safety risk. The Safety Measurement System (SMS) is FMCSA’s workload prioritization
tool. FMCSA uses the SMS to identify carriers with potential safety problems for interventions? as part of
the Agency’s safety compliance and enforcement program called Compliance, Safety, Accountability
(CSA).

The SMS is designed to incorporate the safety-based regulations related to motor carrier operations.
The SMS assesses compliance and prioritizes carriers for interventions based on their on-road
performance and investigation results. On-road performance includes data collected from roadside
inspections and crash reports; investigation results include violations discovered within the previous 12
months.

The SMS assesses motor carrier on-road performance and compliance by organizing data into seven
Behavior Analysis and Safety Improvement Categories (BASICs): Unsafe Driving, Crash Indicator, Hours-
of-Service Compliance, Vehicle Maintenance, Controlled Substances/Alcohol, Hazardous Materials
Compliance (HM), and Driver Fitness.

In each BASIC, the SMS calculates a quantifiable measure of a motor carrier’s performance. The SMS
groups carriers by BASIC with other carriers that have a similar number of safety events (e.g., crashes,
inspections, or violations). The SMS then ranks these carriers based on their BASIC measure, assighing

them a percentile from 0-100 (the higher the percentile, the worse the safety performance).

The SMS also prioritizes carriers for interventions using a set of violations known as Acute and Critical
Violations. This set of violations is defined in the current Safety Fitness Procedures (49 CFR 385 Appendix

B). If a carrier has been found with one or more Acute and/or Critical Violations within the past 12
months during an investigation, the carrier will receive an “Alert” in the corresponding BASICs. The SMS
uses both the BASIC percentiles and Acute and Critical Violations to highlight safety performance issues
within each BASIC and prioritize carriers for interventions.

Various studies have shown that the SMS is effective in helping the Agency identify high crash-risk
carriers for interventions.

e FMCSA’s 2014 SMS Effectiveness Test found that six of the seven BASICs identify carriers

1 An intervention is an action used by FMCSA to encourage or enforce compliance with Federal regulations. Types of interventions include
warning letters, roadside inspections, and investigations.
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SMS Methodology 1. Introduction

with a higher future crash rate than the national average for interventions and in all BASICs
in the for-hire combination carrier segment.? The report also found that carriers with one or
more BASICs prioritized for interventions have a 79% higher future crash rate compared to
active carriers with no BASICs prioritized for interventions.

e A 2012 American Transportation Research Institute (ATRI) report analyzed the five publicly
available BASICs.3 The report showed that carriers with an “Alert” demonstrated higher
crash rates than those without “Alerts” in four BASICs.* In addition, the report showed that
crash risk increases as the number of “Alerts” increases.

e The 2011 independent evaluation of the CSA Operational Model Test found that five of the
seven SMS BASICs demonstrated a strong relationship to crash risk.>

1.1 Purpose of this Document

The purpose of this document is to explain how motor carriers’ safety performance and compliance
status in the SMS BASICs causes them to be identified and prioritized for FMCSA interventions. Motor
carriers highlighted with a A (i.e., “Alert”) symbol in the corresponding BASIC are prioritized for
interventions or further monitoring. This BASIC prioritization status information is currently displayed on
the SMS Website.®

This revised version of the SMS Methodology document incorporates and consolidates information on
how investigation results impact a carrier’s prioritization status in each BASIC. These revisions to the
SMS Methodology document are intended to make information regarding the SMS methodology easier
to access and understand, but do not alter the methodology itself. A brief summary of each section of
the document appears below.

Section 2. Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status: describes the seven BASICs, the data
sources, and how on-road performance and/or Acute and Critical Violations from prior
investigations are used to determine BASIC prioritization status.

Section 3. SMS BASIC Prioritization Status Methodology: explains the methodology used to
determine percentiles and how the percentiles and/or investigation results for each BASIC affect

2 FMCSA, The Carrier Safety Measurement System (CSMS) Effectiveness Test by Behavior Analysis and Safety Improvement Categories (BASICs),
January 2014. The full report is available at: http://csa.fmcsa.dot.gov/Documents/CSMS Effectiveness Test Final Report.pdf.

3 ATRI, Compliance, Safety, Accountability: Analyzing the Relationship of Scores to Crash Risk, October 2012, http://atri-online.org.
4 FMCSA prioritizes carriers with “Alerts” for interventions.

5 University of Michigan Transportation Research Institute (UMTRI), Evaluation of the CSA 2010 Operational Model Test, August 2011.
http://csa.fmcsa.dot.gov/Documents/Evaluation-of-the-CSA-Op-Model-Test.pdf.

6 The SMS Website is available at: http://ai.fmcsa.dot.gov/sms/. Pursuant to the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015, the
information previously available on the SMS Website related to property carrier’s compliance and safety performance is no longer available for

public display. FMCSA is working to restore the data that is allowed to remain publicly available. At this time, FMCSA has restored the publicly
available inspection and crash data for property carriers to the public SMS Website. Property carriers must log in to view their complete SMS
results.
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the carrier’s BASIC prioritization status.
Section 4. SMS Improvement Process: outlines the Agency’s improvement process for the SMS.

Appendix A: contains tables listing all of the violations used in the SMS by BASIC, along with the
corresponding Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs) or Hazardous Materials
Regulations (HMRs).

Appendix B: provides a history of the changes made to the SMS methodology to date.

" February 2016 -
@
U.5. Department of Transportation 13 -

Federal Motar Carrier Safety Administration Compliance + Safety + Accountability



2.Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status

The Safety Measurement System (SMS) is the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s (FMCSA)
workload prioritization tool. FMCSA uses the SMS to assess noncompliance by analyzing on-road
performance data collected from inspections, crash reports, and Acute and Critical Violations discovered
during prior investigations. The SMS uses this safety data to assess carriers in the seven Behavior
Analysis and Safety Improvement Categories (BASICs). The BASICs are: Unsafe Driving, Crash Indicator,
Hours-of-Service (HOS) Compliance, Vehicle Maintenance, Controlled Substances/Alcohol, Hazardous
Materials (HM) Compliance, and Driver Fitness.

Since its inception, the SMS has provided the motor carrier industry and other safety stakeholders with
more comprehensive, informative, and regularly updated safety performance data.’ Findings from the
SMS allow the evaluated carriers to identify safety areas where they need to improve. In turn, this
information empowers motor carriers and other stakeholders involved with the motor carrier industry
to make safety-based business decisions using all available sources of information, including safety
fitness determinations (ratings) in FMCSA’s Safety and Fitness Electronic Records (SAFER) system, and
authority and insurance status in FMCSA’s Licensing and Insurance (L&I) system. Access to all of this
information was centralized in the August 2014 revisions to the SMS public display.

2.1 Description of the BASICs

The BASICs incorporate violations of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSRs) and the
Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMRs), and are organized to focus on behaviors that may cause or
increase the severity of crashes. The BASICs are defined as follows:

e Unsafe Driving BASIC—Operation of commercial motor vehicles (CMVs) in a dangerous or
careless manner. Example violations include: speeding, reckless driving, improper lane
change, texting while operating a CMV, not wearing safety belts.

e Crash Indicator BASIC (not publicly available)—Historical pattern of crash involvement,
including frequency and severity. This BASIC is based on information from State-reported
crashes that meet reportable crash standards. All reportable crashes are used regardless of
the carrier’s or driver’s role in the crash. This BASIC uses crash history that is not specifically
a behavior but instead the consequence of a behavior or a set of behaviors.

e HOS Compliance BASIC—Operation of CMVs by drivers who are ill, fatigued, or in
noncompliance with the HOS regulations. This BASIC includes violations of regulations
pertaining to records of duty status (RODS) as they relate to HOS requirements and the

7 See 75 Fed. Reg. 18256 (Apr. 9, 2010).
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management of CMV driver fatigue. Example violations include: operating a CMV while ill or
fatigued, requiring or permitting a property-carrying CMV driver to drive more than 11
hours, failing to preserve RODS for 6 months/failing to preserve supporting documents.

e Vehicle Maintenance BASIC—Failure to properly maintain a CMV and prevent shifting loads,
spilled or dropped cargo, and overloading of a CMV. Example violations include: inoperative
brakes, lights, and other mechanical defects, improper load securement, failure to make
required repairs.

e Controlled Substances/Alcohol BASIC—Operation of CMVs by drivers who are impaired due
to alcohol, illegal drugs, and misuse of prescription or over-the-counter medications.
Example violations include: use or possession of controlled substances or alcohol, failing to
implement an alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program.

e HM Compliance BASIC (not publicly available)—Unsafe handling of HM on a CMV. Example
violations include: failing to mark, label, or placard in accordance with the regulations, not
properly securing a package containing HM, leaking containers, failing to conduct a test or
inspection on a cargo tank when required by the United States Department of
Transportation (U.S. DOT).

e Driver Fitness BASIC—Operation of CMVs by drivers who are unfit to operate a CMV due to
lack of training, experience, or medical qualifications. Example violations include: failing to
have a valid and appropriate commercial driver's license (CDL), being medically unqualified
to operate a CMV, failing to maintain driver qualification files.

In addition to the seven BASICs, there is an Insurance/Other Indicator used for prioritization that
incorporates violations found during investigations. The Insurance/Other Indicator is defined as follows:

e Insurance/Other Indicator (not publicly available)—Failure to comply with registration,
insurance, or other reporting requirements. Example violations include: operating a CMV
without the minimum level of financial responsibility, failing to maintain copies of crash
reports.

2.2 Data Sources

The SMS assesses an individual carrier’s performance by BASIC calculated from information collected
from roadside inspections, State-reported CMV crash records, and Acute and Critical Violations from
investigations. These data are recorded in the Motor Carrier Management Information System (MCMIS).
In addition, motor carrier Census data, also recorded in MCMIS, are used for the identification and
normalization of safety event group data. Below are more detailed descriptions of each data source.

e Roadside Inspections are examinations that a certified Motor Carrier Safety Assistance

Program (MCSAP) inspector (usually State or local law enforcement personnel) conducts on
individual CMVs and drivers to determine if they are in compliance with the FMCSRs and/or
HMRs.

0 Violations are recorded during inspections and entered into the MCMIS database. A
subset of these violations may result in a driver or vehicle being placed out-of-

" February 2016 .
@
U.5. Department of Transportation 2:2 e

Federal Motar Carrier Safety Administration Compliance + Safety + Accountability




SMS Methodology 2. Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status

service (00S). The OOS violations must be corrected before the affected driver or
vehicle is allowed to return to service. The SMS assessments are based on the safety
violations listed in Appendix A. These assessments, however, do not include those
violations that are: (1) a result of a crash?; (2) assigned exclusively to another entity
such as a shipper or Intermodal Equipment Provider (IEP); or (3) indicated as
“dismissed/not guilty” based on the adjudicated citation process.

Note: Some roadside inspections are performed following a traffic enforcement stop
for a moving violation. Violations reported on the inspection form during such stops
do not always result in the issuance of a citation to the driver, but are used in the
SMS whether or not a citation is issued.

¢ Investigations are examinations that a certified Safety Investigator (SI) conducts on
individual motor carriers to evaluate their compliance with the FMCSRs and/or HMRs. There
are two types of investigations: Offsite Investigations and Onsite Investigations. Offsite
Investigations address emerging safety problems and do not occur at the carrier’s principal
place of business (PPOB). During an Offsite Investigation, an SI works with the carrier
remotely to identify safety problems using documentation that the carrier provides related
to each BASIC. Onsite Investigations occur at the carrier’s PPOB, and may focus on specific
safety problems (Onsite Focused Investigation) or the carrier’s entire operations (Onsite
Comprehensive Investigation).

0 Violations are recorded during investigations and entered into the MCMIS database.
Acute and Critical Violations are a subset of these violations. This subset of
violations is defined in the current Safety Fitness Procedures (49 CFR 385 Appendix
B). An Acute Violation, also known as a one-time occurrence violation, is triggered
by noncompliance so severe that immediate corrective action is required. A Critical
Violation, also known as a pattern of occurrence violation, is triggered by a pattern
of noncompliance related to the carrier’'s management or operational controls that
is found during an investigation. For more information on each type of violation, see
section 2.4.

e State-Reported Commercial Vehicle Crash Data are taken from MCMIS and provide

information on crashes as reported by State and local law enforcement officials. All
reportable crashes are used regardless of the carrier’s or driver’s role in the crash. A
reportable crash is defined in 49 CFR 390.5 as a crash that involves a CMV operating on a
public roadway, which results in a fatality, an injury, and/or a tow-away.

e Motor Carrier Census Data are first collected when a carrier obtains a U.S. DOT number. The

Census data are primarily collected from: (1) Form MCS-150, filled out by the carrier, and (2)
Form MCS-151, filled out by law enforcement as part of an investigation. The SMS uses

8 Only pre-existing violations from post-crash inspections are used in the SMS. Violations recorded in MCMIS as being attributed to the crash
are not used.
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SMS Methodology 2. Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status

Census data for identification and normalization of safety-related data. Examples of Census
data include U.S. DOT number, carrier name, number and type of Power Units (PUs),
annualized Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT), physical location, current status, and types of
cargo hauled (e.g., household goods, produce, chemicals, grain, metal, etc.).

2.3 On-Road Design Features

The SMS analyzes a carrier’s on-road performance by converting the carrier’s inspection and crash data
into BASIC measures and percentiles. This conversion involves the application of several SMS design
features, as discussed below.

Violation Severity

All roadside inspection violations that pertain to a BASIC are assigned a severity weight that reflects its
association with crash occurrence and crash consequences. The severity weights help differentiate the
levels of crash risk associated with the various violations attributed to each BASIC.

The violation severity weights in the tables in Appendix A have been converted to a scale from 1 to 10
for each BASIC, where 1 represents the lowest crash risk and 10 represents the highest crash risk
relative to the other violations in the BASIC. Since these severity weights are BASIC-specific, two weights
that appear identical but are in different BASICs do not represent the same crash risk. For example, a 5
in one BASIC is not equivalent to a 5 in another BASIC. Instead, the 5 represents the midpoint between a
crash risk of 1 and 10 within a BASIC. Severity weights from one BASIC should not be added, subtracted,
equated, or otherwise combined with the severity weight of a violation from any other BASIC.

Within certain BASICs, additional severity weight is applied to violations that resulted in driver or vehicle
OO0S Orders. This additional severity weight for OOS conditions, as with the severity weight assigned to
each violation, is based on analysis that quantified the extent of these associations between violation
and crash risk, as well as input from enforcement subject matter experts. Appendix A describes the
severity weights’ derivation and provides the specific weights assigned to each roadside inspection
violation used in the SMS.

Adjudicated Citations

States may issue a citation (i.e., ticket) associated with a violation noted in the roadside inspection. Such
citations may be subsequently adjudicated in a due process system. FMCSA has implemented an
adjudicated citations policy that impacts the use of roadside inspection violations in the SMS. Under this
policy, violations can be removed or set to a severity weight of 1 in the SMS if the adjudicated citations
associated with those violations result in certain outcomes, as indicated in Table 2-1 below.
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SMS Methodology 2. Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status

Table 2-1. Impact of Adjudicated Citation Result on Violation in SMS

Citation Result for a Violation Violation in SMS

Dismissed/Not guilty Remove violation (as stated in Section 2.2)

Convicted of a different charge Severity weight set to 1 and not subject to O0S
weight

For violations to be considered for removal or set to a lower severity weight in the SMS, drivers or
carriers must submit certified documentation of the judicial proceeding results through a Request for
Data Review (RDR) in FMCSA’s DataQs system to initiate this process. The results of the process will
determine if the violation is removed, set to a severity weight of 1, or retained for use in the SMS. This
process only applies to inspections conducted on or after August 23, 2014, and is not retroactive.’

Crash Severity

Crashes are assigned severity weights according to their impact. Greater weight is attributed to crashes
involving injuries, fatalities, and/or crashes involving the release of HM than to crashes resulting only in
a vehicle being towed away from the scene of the crash.

Time Weights

All on-road safety events are assigned a time weight. The time weight of an event decreases with time.
This decline results in more recent events having a greater impact on a carrier’s BASIC measures than
older events. Safety events older than 24 months are no longer used to assess a carrier’s safety posture
in the SMS.

Normalization

BASIC measures are normalized to reflect differences in on-road exposure among carriers. The SMS
normalizes for the number of driver inspections with driver-related BASICs, and vehicle inspections are
used for normalization within vehicle-related BASICs. Therefore, the number of driver inspections
normalizes the HOS Compliance, Controlled Substances/Alcohol, and Driver Fitness measures, while the
number of vehicle inspections normalizes the Vehicle Maintenance and HM Compliance BASIC
measures. The HM Compliance BASIC measure is further qualified to use only vehicle inspections where
the carrier was noted as transporting placardable quantities of HM.

While violations of the above BASICs are discovered during an inspection, a distinction is made for
behaviors that usually prompt an inspection. For this reason, the SMS also normalizes the Unsafe Driving

9 As outlined in the Federal Register Notice published on June 5, 2014 (http://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations/rulemaking/2014-13022).
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BASIC measure by carrier size (i.e., a hybrid PU and VMT measure), as this BASIC largely comprises
violations such as speeding that initiate an inspection being conducted. Similarly, the Crash Indicator
BASIC is also normalized by carrier size.

Segmentation

The Unsafe Driving and Crash Indicator BASICs account for carrier differences by segmenting the carrier
population into two groups based on the types of vehicles operated. This segmentation ensures that
carriers with fundamentally different types of vehicles/operations are not compared to each other. The
two segments are: (1) “Combination” or combination trucks/motor coach buses when these vehicle
types constitute 70% or more of the total PU types in a motor carrier’s fleet, and (2) “Straight” or
straight trucks/other vehicles when these vehicle types constitute more than 30% of the total PUs in a
motor carrier’s fleet.

Safety Event Groups

To further account for the differences among carriers when assessing their on-road performance, the
SMS places carriers in safety event groups based on the number of safety events (e.g., inspections,
violations, crashes) in which they have been involved. This tiered approach accounts for the inherently
greater variability in rates based on small samples or limited levels of exposure and the stronger level of
confidence in measures based on higher exposure. The safety event grouping also allows the SMS to
handle the widely diverse motor carrier population while ensuring that similarly situated carriers are
treated with the same standards.

Data Sufficiency

The SMS employs data sufficiency standards to ensure that there are enough inspections or crashes to
produce meaningful measures of on-road safety performance for carriers. In instances where the safety
performance of a carrier can potentially lead to FMCSA interventions, additional data sufficiency tests
are employed. These tests ensure that a carrier has a “critical mass” of poor performance data or a
pattern of violations, such as having a minimum number of inspections with BASIC-related violations,
before adverse action is taken.

Percentile Rank

The SMS uses on-road measures to assign a percentile ranking to each BASIC. Each measure is a
guantifiable determination of safety behavior. Percentile ranking allows the safety behavior of a carrier
to be compared with the safety behavior of carriers with similar numbers of safety events. Within each
safety event group, a percentile is computed on a 0—100 scale for each carrier that receives a non-zero
measure, with 100 indicating the worst performance.

Percentiles are generated from measures of U.S.-domiciled interstate and HM carriers. The remaining
carriers—intrastate non-HM and non-U.S.-domiciled—are assigned percentiles afterwards based on the
equivalent measures-to-percentile relationship of the U.S.-domiciled carriers. Carriers with percentiles
above a certain set threshold that meet minimum data sufficiency requirements in a BASIC will be
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identified for potential FMCSA interventions.

2.4 Investigation Features

SMS assessments in each BASIC consider both percentiles and Acute and Critical Violations related to
that BASIC. If a carrier is found with one or more Acute and/or Critical Violations within the past 12
months during an investigation, the carrier will receive a A symbol in the corresponding BASIC. This A
symbol denotes that the carrier may be prioritized for interventions or further monitoring. The details of
the violation will be displayed on the SMS Website in the carrier’s investigation results related to that
BASIC.

Acute and Critical Violations

Acute and Critical Violations are recorded during Onsite and Offsite Investigations. These violations are
defined in the current Safety Fitness Procedures (49 CFR 385 Appendix B). An Acute Violation, also

known as a one-time occurrence violation, is triggered by noncompliance discovered during an
investigation that is so severe that immediate corrective action is required. Examples of Acute Violations
are using a disqualified driver and using a driver known to have tested positive for a controlled
substance.

A Critical Violation, also known as a pattern of occurrence violation, is triggered by a pattern of
noncompliance related to the carrier’s management or operational controls that is found during an
investigation. A carrier must meet the following criteria for a Critical Violation to affect the BASIC
prioritization status:

e Violations are discovered in at least 10% of the carrier’s records checked during an
investigation; and
e Qut of these records, a pattern of violations (i.e., more than one occurrence) is found.

Examples of Critical Violations are false reports of RODS and failing to maintain a driver qualification file
on each driver employed. A complete list of Acute and Critical Violations can be found in Appendix A.

2.5 BASIC Prioritization Status

A carrier’s BASIC prioritization status is based on its on-road safety performance percentile and/or any
Acute and Critical Violations from an investigation(s) related to that BASIC. FMCSA prioritizes carriers for
interventions based on the number of percentiles a carrier has at or above the established BASIC
Intervention Thresholds and/or if the carrier has been found with one or more Acute and/or Critical
Violations within the past 12 months during an investigation. If a carrier receives a A symbol in a BASIC,
the carrier may be prioritized for interventions such as warning letters and investigations, or may be
subject to further monitoring.
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BASIC Intervention Thresholds

The Intervention Thresholds for each BASIC listed in Table 2—-2 below show that these thresholds are set
at various BASIC percentiles. Because higher percentiles represent worse safety performance, a lower
BASIC Intervention Threshold percentile represents a more stringent safety criterion. FMCSA’s analysis
has shown that the Unsafe Driving, Crash Indicator, and HOS Compliance BASICs have the strongest
associations to crash risk.® Therefore, the BASICs with stronger associations to future crash involvement
have a lower Intervention Threshold than the other BASICs. Similarly, passenger and HM carriers have
lower Intervention Thresholds because when they are involved in crashes the consequences are often
greater.

Table 2-2. BASIC Intervention Thresholds

Intervention Thresholds

Passenger General
Carrier
Unsafe Driving, Crash Indicator, HOS Compliance 50% 60% 65%
Vehicle Maintenance, Controlled Substances/Alcohol, 65% 75% 80%
Driver Fitness
HM Compliance 80% 80% 80%

Intervention Threshold Definitions by Carrier Type

A carrier is subject to one of the three Intervention Thresholds based on its carrier type: passenger
carrier, HM, or general. The general Intervention Threshold applies to most carriers except for those
that meet the passenger carrier or HM Intervention Thresholds. Definitions of the passenger carrier and
the HM Intervention Thresholds are provided in Table 2—-3 and Table 2—4 below.

10 FMCSA, The Carrier Safety Measurement System (CSMS) Effectiveness Test by Behavior Analysis and Safety Improvement Categories (BASICs),
January 2014. The full report is available at: http://csa.fmcsa.dot.gov/Documents/CSMS Effectiveness Test Final Report.pdf.

" February 2016 -
@
U.5. Department of Transportation 2-8 -

Federal Motar Carrier Safety Administration Compliance + Safety + Accountability



http://csa.fmcsa.dot.gov/Documents/CSMS_Effectiveness_Test_Final_Report.pdf

SMS Methodology 2. Design of the SMS BASIC Prioritization Status

Table 2-3. Passenger Carrier Intervention Threshold Definition

Passenger Carrier Intervention Threshold Definition

1) Carrier Meets Passenger Authority Criteria
a. Carrier has “active” passenger authority in L&l
AND
b. At least 2% of the carrier’s PUs are 9+ passenger capacity vehicles

2) OR Carrier Meets For-Hire Criteria

a. Carrier has selected a “for-hire” operation type on the MCS-150
AND
b. One of the following:
i. At least 2% of the carrier’s PUs are 9+ passenger capacity vehicles

a type of cargo they carry

ii. The carrier has registered no PUs on the MCS-150 and has selected “passengers” as

3) OR Carrier Meets Private Passenger Criteria

a. Carrier has selected a “private passenger” operation type on the MCS-150
AND

b. At least 2% of the carrier’s PUs are 16+ passenger capacity vehicles

Table 2—4. HM Intervention Threshold Definition

HM Intervention Threshold Definition

1) Carrier Meets All Three of the HM Inspection Criteria Listed Below
a. At least 2 HM placardable vehicle inspections in the past 24 months
AND
b. At least 1 HM placardable vehicle inspections in the past 12 months
AND
c. At least 5% of vehicle inspections are HM placardable inspections

2) OR Has a Hazardous Materials Safety Permit (HMSP)
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3.SMS BASIC Prioritization Status Methodology

The Safety Measurement System (SMS) determines a carrier’s prioritization status (i.e., prioritized or not
prioritized) in each Behavior Analysis and Safety Improvement Category (BASIC) based on the carrier’s
on-road performance and/or investigation results. A carrier’s relative on-road performance is indicated
by its BASIC percentile. Investigation results reflect if any Acute and Critical Violations are found in a
given BASIC during investigations. A carrier can be prioritized for interventions because its percentile is
at or above the Intervention Threshold and/or it has one or more Acute and/or Critical Violations related
a particular BASIC. The following sections describe the SMS methodology used to determine a carrier’s
prioritization status in each BASIC.

3.1 Unsafe Driving BASIC Prioritization Status Assessment

The sections below describe how a carrier’s Unsafe Driving percentile and investigation results are
determined and how they both affect the carrier’s prioritization status. The Unsafe Driving BASIC is
defined as:

e Operation of commercial motor vehicles (CMVs) in a dangerous or careless manner.
Example violations include: speeding, reckless driving, improper lane change, texting while
operating a CMV, not wearing safety belts.

On-Road Performance

The SMS assesses the Unsafe Driving BASIC using applicable violations recorded during roadside
inspections to calculate a measure for motor carriers. Individual carriers’ BASIC measures also
incorporate carrier size in terms of Power Units (PUs) and annual Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT). These
measures are used to generate percentile ranks that reflect each carrier’s safety posture relative to
carriers with similar numbers of inspections with applicable violations.

Calculation of BASIC Measure
The measures for the Unsafe Driving BASIC are calculated as the sum of severity- and time-weighted